REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS (RFQ) DOCUMENTS FOR THE JEFFERSON DAVIS PARISH POLICE JURY

PROJECT NAME: Engineering, Design, and Construction
Administration for Drinking Water Improvements
PROJECT NUMBER: 20250007

December 24, 2025



OWNER:
JEFFERSON DAVIS PARISH POLICE JURY
304 N. STATE STREET
JENNINGS, LA 70546
337-824-4792
www.jdppj.net

Submission Deadline: January 23, 2026 – 4:00 PM CST

Table of Contents

PROJECT OVERVIEW	1
RFQ SCHEDULE	2
SCOPE OF SERVICES	3
SUBMITAL REQUIREMENTS	3
EVALUATION CRITERIA	4
ADDITONAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS	5
NO INTENT TO SUBMIT	7
NON-COLLUSION AFFIDAVIT	8
ATTESTATIONS AFFIDAVIT	9
ATTESTATIONS AFFIDAVIT (Continued)	10
NEPOTISM STATEMENT	11
DEBARMENT & SUSPENSION CERTIFICATION	12
CIVIL RIGHTS TITLE VI	13
FEDERAL PROCUREMENT DOCUMENTS	14
NOTICE OF AWARD	29
NOTICE TO PROCEED	30

PROJECT OVERVIEW

FOR: JEFFERSON DAVIS PARISH POLICE JURY (JDPPJ) (OWNER)

PROJECT NAME: Engineering, Design, and Construction Administration - Drinking Water

Improvements

PROJECT # 2025007

The Jefferson Davis Parish Police Jury ("Police Jury") invites qualified firms ("Respondent") to submit qualifications for engineering, design, and construction administration related to the Police Jury's drinking water improvements project, funded under the US Environmental Protection Agency ("EPA").

The project will involve replacing and upsizing aging water lines, looping isolated segments to enhance system redundancy, and extending service to areas that currently lack reliable access. Work will include all necessary study, design, environmental compliance, and construction administration.

FUNDING & MATCH:

• Federal Share: \$2,778,000

• Local Share: \$0

• Total Project Cost: \$2,778,000

Detailed Project Budget

Item	Budgeted Amount
Personnel:	\$0
Fringe Benefits:	\$0
Travel:	\$0
Equipment:	\$0
Supplies:	\$0
Contractual:	\$381,974
Construction:	\$2,369,195
Other:	\$26,831
Total Direct Charges:	\$2,778,000
Indirect Charges:	\$0
Total Project Budget:	\$2,778,000

RFQ SCHEDULE

<u>Milestone</u> <u>Date</u>

RFQ Advertisement December 24, 2025

RFQ Publications December 24 and 31, 2025 and January

04, 2026

Question Submission January 09, 2026

Publication of Addenda/Responses January 14, 2025 (if applicable) **Submission Deadline January 23, 2026 – 4:00 PM CST**

(If Applicable, Bids will be opened on this same date and time at 304 N. State Street,

Jennings LA)

Evaluation Period January 26-30, 2026 Selection of Consultant (Tentative) January 30, 2026 Contract Award & Notice to Proceed February 13, 2026

RFQ SUBMITALLS:

Bids can be emailed to ben@jdppj.net or mailed, or hand delivered to the Jefferson Davis Parish Police Jury, located at 304 N. State Street, Jennings, LA 70546. Submittals must be submitted by the date and time listed on the RFQ Schedule. Digital submittals shall be in PDF format. If physical copies are submitted, a minimum of three (3) copies shall be submitted. JDPPJ is not responsible for issues with delivery service. All cover letters and subject of all emails shall include project number. Submittals must include all required documents contained in this package, completed in full, particularly those listed under "Documents Required with Submittal" in the Table of Contents.

WRITTEN INQUIRIES:

All questions for bid shall be directed to the Parish Administrator in written form and emailed to: ben@jdppj.net. Responses to written inquiries and/or addenda(s) will be published on JDPPJ's website: www.jdppj.net by the date and time listed on the RFQ Schedule and will be considered part of the original RFQ.

QUALIFIED SUBMITTALS:

Only submittals that meet all of the requirements of this RFQ and submitted by the date and time listed on the RFQ Schedule will be considered valid and thus accepted. This includes signing all necessary documents in the RFQ as well as any attachments.

PREPROPOSAL MEETING

There will be no pre-proposal meeting for this RFQ.

EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

The JDPPJ encourages Minority-owned Business Enterprises (MBEs), Woman-owned Business Enterprises (WBEs), and Section 3 eligible businesses to submit proposals.

SCOPE OF SERVICES

PROJECT SUMMARY:

The selected consultant shall provide comprehensive professional services to determine the specific location and configuration of drinking water improvements, and whether acquisition of land for easements or rights-of-way is necessary. The selected consultant will be responsible for any necessary environmental or historic preservation compliance activities, including any required environmental assessments. Final project design is contingent upon the results of these early studies and assessments. As the project is refined and planning progresses, JDPPJ will submit any requested or required documentation, including preliminary or interim design plans, feasibility reports, maps, site photographs, and any information necessary to satisfy NEPA compliance, and related environmental review requirements.

The anticipated deliverables include the replacement and upsizing of aging water lines to improve service reliability and reduce the risk of leaks or system failures, as well as the looping of isolated segments to strengthen redundancy within the distribution network. Service will be extended to underserved areas, particularly near interstate interchanges, to support public health and economic development. The project will also replace the emergency standby generator and rehabilitate the existing filters, including replacing the filter media and related components, to enhance treatment performance and reliability. Additional outputs include the construction of new water storage tanks or the rehabilitation of existing structures to maintain consistent system pressure and ensure adequate supply during high demand periods or emergency events. The installation of smart automation systems – including SCADA integration, remote monitoring equipment, and automated control valves – will further enhance operational efficiency and real-time system responsiveness.

The expected outcomes include expanded access to clean, safe drinking water for residents in underserved areas of Jefferson Davis Parish, particularly near interstate interchanges designated for future development. By replacing aging infrastructure, looping isolated segments, and extending service, the project will enhance system reliability, stabilize water pressure, and reduce service interruptions. These improvements will also lower the risk of contamination from leaks and pipe failures.

SUBMITAL REQUIREMENTS

Submittals must include:

- Cover Letter and Statement of Interest
- Company Overview and Experience
- Project Understanding and Approach
- Proposed Project Team and Resumes
- Relevant Project Experience (minimum 3 references)
- Required Documents signed (see Table of Contents)

Note: Ensure submittals fully address all items listed below in Evaluation Criteria.

EVALUATION CRITERIA

Firms or individuals proposing to furnish such professional services should submit a statement of their qualifications, experience with similar projects and capacity for performance. Proposals will be evaluated and ranked by members of a selection committee, based of the following criteria:

<u>30% Relevant Experience</u> – Information regarding the firm's experience with similar projects previously undertaken, experience with the specified project activities to be undertaken, including previous planning initiatives with public engagement.

<u>30% Qualifications of Project Team –</u> List of qualifications of all persons to be assigned to project including any sub-consultants, identify the project manager, and provide an organizational chart.

<u>20% Capacity for Performance</u> Identify the number, availability and title of staff to be assigned to provide services as well as each staff person's familiarity with this type of project.

<u>20% Consultant's Ratings and/or Past Performance</u> – JDPPJ will consider the past performance of consultants on similar projects in nearby or similar areas.

The highest scoring firm will be selected for negotiating a professional services contract. If a satisfactory fee (if applicable) cannot be negotiated with the highest scoring firm, JDPPJ has the choice to move to next (highest scored) consultant on the short list after.

There is no minimum or maximum page requirement for this RFQ. However, respondents are strongly encouraged to provide sufficient detail to fully demonstrate qualifications and relevant experience without including unnecessary or unrelated information. Submissions should be clear, focused, and concise.

All supporting documentation (such as licenses) should be included in the appendices rather than in the main body of the proposal.

ADDITONAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

APPROPRIATION OF FUNDS:

The Police Jury has budgeted a specific amount of funds for this project. If those funds are exhausted, the selected Contractor's sole remedy will be to suspend or terminate work under this contract. The Contractor will have no other legal or equitable claims against the Police Jury and no right to damages of any kind.

TERMINATION FOR CAUSE:

The Police Jury reserves the right to terminate this contract for cause if any of the following occurs:

- The Contractor fails to perform in accordance with the specifications.
- The Contractor violates any provision of the specifications.
- The Contractor disregards any applicable laws or regulations.
- The Contractor transfers or assigns any part of its obligations without written consent from the Police Jury.

If one or more of these events occur, the Police Jury may terminate the contract by providing the Contractor with seven (7) days' written notice. In such a case, the Contractor will only be entitled to payment for work performed and accepted prior to the termination date. The Contractor will not be entitled to payment for lost profits, anticipated revenue, or any other economic loss related to the termination.

Termination for cause does not limit any other rights or remedies the Police Jury may have now or in the future.

TERMINATION FOR CONVIENCE:

The Police Jury also reserves the right to terminate this contract, for any reason and at any time, by providing thirty (30) days' written notice. In such a case, the Contractor may be paid for services actually performed prior to the termination date, provided those services are satisfactory.

COST OF PREPARATION:

Costs of preparation of a response to this request are solely those of the Respondent including but not limited to any expenses incurred for interviews, presentations or negotiations. JDPPJ assumes no responsibility for any such costs incurred by the Respondent. The Respondent also agrees that JDPPJ assumes no responsibility for any costs associated with any administrative or judicial proceedings resulting from the solicitation process.

CONFIDENTIALITY DURING EVALUATION PROCESS:

All documents submitted as part of the Respondent's offering will be deemed confidential during the evaluation process.

SAM REGISRATION:

All Respondents may be required to register, or have an active registration, with the System for Award Management (SAM). Registration is free. SAM is the official registration required to do business with the federal government, including local governments who receive federal funds. Registration is completed through the SAM website: https://sam.gov/SAM.

FINANCIAL RESPONSIBILITY:

A. Insurance – The Respondent, consistent with its status as an independent contractor, shall carry, and shall require any of its subcontractors to carry, at least the following insurance in such form,

with such companies and in such amounts (unless otherwise specified in the Scope of Services) as JDPPJ may require, naming itself as the additional insured. Insurance coverage shall be on an 'occurrence basis'.

- 1. Worker's Compensation and Employer's Liability insurance, including All States Endorsement, to the extent required by federal law and complying with the laws of the State of Louisiana;
- 2. Commercial General Liability insurance for at least one million dollars (\$1,000,000) on a per occurrence basis, with a two million dollar (\$2,000,000) aggregate Blanket Contractual Liability, Broad Form Property Damage, Personal Injury, Completed Operations/Products Liability, Premises Liability, Medical Payments, and Broad Form General Liability Endorsements:
- 3. Comprehensive Automobile Liability insurance covering all owned, non-owned, or hired automobiles to be used by the contractor, with coverage at least the minimum required by the State of Louisiana; and
- 4. Professional Liability, Errors, and Omissions in an amount to be determined in the Scope of Services.
- B. Indemnification In accordance with the laws of the State of Louisiana, the Contractor agrees to indemnify, save, and hold harmless JDPPJ, its employees, officials, and agents from any and all claims, actions, damages, proceedings, judgements, or liabilities, for personal injury, death, or property damage resulting from the acts or omissions of anyone under the contractor's supervision or control.

In the event of any cause of action or claim asserted by a party to this agreement or any third party, JDPPJ will provide the Contractor with timely notice of such claim, dispute, or notice. Thereafter, the Contractor shall at its own expense, faithfully and completely defend and protect JDPPJ against any and all liabilities arising from this claim, cause of action, or notice.

1. Indemnity for intellectual property – Respondent hereby warrants that the use or sale of the products, materials, and services delivered hereunder will not infringe on the rights of any trade secrets, patent, copyright, registered trademark, or other intellectual property by right covering such materials and the successful Respondent agrees to indemnify and hold harmless JDPPJ for any and all costs, expenses, judgements, and damages which JDPPJ may have to pay or incur.

REJECTION OF RESPONSES:

JDPPJ reserves the right to accept or reject any or all proposals, with or without cause, to waive technicalities, or to accept the proposal which, in its sole judgment, best serves the interest of the parish, or to award a contract to the next most qualified Respondent if a successful Respondent does not execute a contract within 15 business days after approval of the selection by the Jefferson Davis Parish Police Jury Members.

POST BID DOCUMENTS:

The respondent selected by this RFQ process and approved by the Jefferson Davis Parish Police Jury Members will receive a Notice of Award. All post bid documents will be executed within ten (10) days from the date of the delivery of the Notice of Award. As per La. R.S. 38:2212, JDPPJ can reject any bid not in compliance with these said provisions and requirements.

NO INTENT TO SUBMIT

If your firm has elected not to submit a proposal or qualifications for this procurement, please complete and submit this form.

Please check all that apply:
☐ Do not provide the goods or services required
☐ Cannot be competitive
☐ Cannot meet the specifications highlighted in the attached request
☐ Project or job is too large
☐ Project or job is too small
☐ Do not wish to do business with JDPPJ
☐ Cannot provide required insurance
☐ Cannot provide required bonding
☐ Cannot comply with required indemnification
☐ Other:
Authorized officer name:
Company official name:

NON-COLLUSION AFFIDAVIT

STATE OF	LOUISIANA	_	
PARISH OF	JEFFERSON DAVIS		
Before me, the unde aforesaid, personally	rsigned authority, duly commissioned y came and appeared	l and qualified within and for the St	tate and Parish
he has read this affic	y came and appearedwho, bei	ng by me first duly sworn deposed th to comply with all provisions her	and said that ein as follows:
	PAF	RT I.	
Section 2224 of Par	t II of Chapter 10 of Title 38 of the Lo	puisiana Revised Statutes, as amend	ded.
directly or indirectly regularly employed	iant employed no person, corporation, to secure the public contract under by the affiant whose services in ablic building or project or in securing the and	which he received payment, other connection with the construction,	r than persons , alteration or
corporation, firm, as their normal compen	part of the Contract price received be ssociation, or other organization for s neation to persons regularly employed eration or demolition of the public bui	oliciting the Contract, other than the least of the affiant whose services in colding or project were in the regular	he payment of onnection with
Section 2190 of Par	PAR t I of Chapter 10 of Title 38 of the Lo		led.
financial interest, ei which supplies mate	t, if an architect or engineer, or rep ther directly or indirectly, in any cor- rials for the construction of a public was ineering services, either directly or in are being supplied.	poration, firm, partnership, or othe ork when the architect or engineer	er organization has performed
	ooses of this Section, a "substantial fin American Stock Exchange or the Nev	•	nterest in stock
	, if subject to the provisions of this or the violation of this section.	section, does hereby agree to be	subject to the
		AFFIANT	
SWORN TO AND	SUBSCRIBED BEFORE ME THIS _	DAY OF	20
		NOTARY	

ATTESTATIONS AFFIDAVIT

STATE OF	<u>LOUISIANA</u>	
PARISH OF	JEFFERSON DAVIS	

Before me, the undersigned notary public, duly commissioned and qualified in and for the parish and state aforesaid, personally came and appeared Affiant, who after being duly sworn, attested as follows:

LA. R.S. 38:2227 PAST CRIMINAL CONVICTIONS OF BIDDERS

- A. No sole proprietor or individual partner, incorporator, director, manager, officer, organizer, or member who has a minimum of a ten percent (10%) ownership in the bidding entity named below has been convicted of, or has entered a plea of guilty or nolo contendere to any of the following state crimes or equivalent federal crimes:
 - (a) Public bribery (R.S. 14:118)
- (c) Extortion (R.S. 14:66)
- (b) Corrupt influencing (R.S. 14:120)
- (d) Money laundering (R.S. 14:230)
- B. Within the past five years from the project bid date, no sole proprietor or individual partner, incorporator, director, manager, officer, organizer, or member who has a minimum of a ten percent (10%) ownership in the bidding entity named below has been convicted of, or has entered a plea of guilty or nolo contendere to any of the following state crimes or equivalent federal crimes, during the solicitation or execution of a contract or bid awarded pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 10 of Title 38 of the Louisiana Revised Statutes:
 - (a) Theft (R.S. 14:67)
 - (b) Identity Theft (R.S. 14:67.16)
 - (c) Theft of a business record (R.S.14:67.20)
 - (d) False accounting (R.S. 14:70)
 - (e) Issuing worthless checks (R.S. 14:71)
- (f) Bank fraud (R.S. 14:71.1)
- (g) Forgery (R.S. 14:72)
- (h) Contractors; misapplication of
- payments (R.S. 14:202)
- (i) Malfeasance in office (R.S. 14:134)

LA. R.S. 38:2212.10 Verification of Employees

- A. At the time of bidding, Appearer is registered and participates in a status verification system to verify that all new hires in the state of Louisiana are legal citizens of the United States or are legal aliens.
- B. If awarded the contract, Appearer shall continue, during the term of the contract, to utilize a status verification system to verify the legal status of all new employees in the state of Louisiana.
- C. If awarded the contract, Appearer shall require all subcontractors to submit to it a sworn affidavit verifying compliance with Paragraphs (A) and (B) of this Subsection.

LA. R.S. 23:1726(B) Certification Regarding Unpaid Workers Compensation Insurance

A. R.S. 23:1726 prohibits any entity against whom an assessment under Part X of Chapter 11 of Title 23 of the Louisiana Revised Statutes of 1950 (Alternative Collection Procedures & Assessments) is in effect, and whose right to appeal that assessment is exhausted, from submitting a bid or proposal for or obtaining any

ATTESTATIONS AFFIDAVIT (Continued)

END ATTESTATIONS AFFIDAVIT

contract pursuant to Chapter 10 of Title 38 of the Louisiana Revised Statutes of 1950 and Chapters 16 and 17 of Title 39 of the Louisiana Revised Statutes of 1950.

В.	By signing this bid /proposal, Affiant certifies that a proposing entity.	no such assessment is in effect aga	inst the bidding
	NAME OF BIDDER:	NAME OF AUTHORIZED SIGNATORY:	
	DATE	TITLE OF AUTHORIZED SI	GNATORY:
		F AUTHORIZED F BIDDER/AFFIANT	_
	Sworn to and subscribed before me by Affiant of	on the day of	, 20
	Notary	Public	

10

NEPOTISM STATEMENT

The Respondent or any officer, if the Respondent is other than an individual, shall disclose whether Respondent has a relationship, either by blood or marriage, with any official or employee of JDDJ by completing the following:

If Respondent is an individual:
 ☐ I am not related by blood or marriage to any official or employee of JDPPJ. ☐ I am related by blood or marriage to the following official(s) or employee(s) of JDPPJ:
Name of JDPPJ official or employee:
If Respondent is not an individual:
☐ The officers of the company submitting these Qualifications are not related by blood or marriage to any official or employee of JDPPJ. ☐ The officers of the company submitting these Qualifications are related by blood or marriage to the following official(s) or employee(s) of JDPPJ:
Name of company officer:
Title of company officer:
Name of JDPPJ official or employee:
Palationshin

DEBARMENT & SUSPENSION CERTIFICATION

The undersigned certifies, by submission of this proposal or acceptance of a contract, that neither the Contractor nor its principals is presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarments, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency. Respondent agrees that by submitting this proposal the Respondent with include this clause without modification in all lower tier transactions, solicitations, proposals, contracts, and subcontracts. Where Respondent or any lower tier participant is unable to certify to this statement, that participant shall attach an explanation to this document.

The above is true and correct to the best of my knowledge and belief.	
Signature of company official authorizing this submittal:	
Company official name:	
Date of signature:	

Note: the penalty for making false statements in offers is prescribed in 18 U.S.C 1001.

CIVIL RIGHTS TITLE VI

The Contractor shall comply with the provisions of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, and all applicable federal regulations. No person shall, on the grounds of race, color, or national origin, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination under any program or activity receiving federal financial assistance.

The Contractor agrees to include this provision in all lower-tier contracts, subcontracts, and agreements associated with this project.

Signature of company official authorizing this submittal:	
Company official name:	
Date of signature:	

FEDERAL PROCUREMENT DOCUMENTS

All provisions of 2 CFR, Part 200 and other federal cross-cutting laws, if applicable, are part of the terms and conditions of any award made by the Police Jury, including:

1. No Government Obligation to Third Parties

The owner and contractors acknowledge that, notwithstanding any concurrence by the federal government in or approval of this solicitation or award of the underlying contract, absent the express written consent by the federal government, the federal government is not a party to this contract and shall not be subject to any obligations or liabilities to the owner, contractor, or any other party (whether or not a party to that contract) pertaining to any matter resulting from this underlying contract.

It is further agreed that the clause shall not be modified, except to identify the subcontractor who will be subject to its provisions.

Signature of company official:
Company official name:
Date of signature:
2. Program Fraud and False or Fraudulent Statements and Related Acts (31 U.S.C. 3801 et seq.) Contractor acknowledges that the provisions of the Program Fraud and Civil Remedies Act of 1986, as amended, 31 U.S.C. § 3801 et seq., 'Administrative Remedies for False Claims and Statements,' apply to its actions pertaining to this project. Upon execution of the underlying contract, the contractor certifies or affirms the truthfulness and accuracy of any statement it has made, it makes, it may make, or causes to be made, pertaining to the underlying contract for which this contract work is being performed. IN addition to other penalties that may be applicable, the contractor further acknowledges that if it makes, or causes to be made, a false, fictitious, or fraudulent claim, statement, submission, or certification, the federal government reserves the right to impose the penalties of the Program Fraud Civil Remedies Act of 1986 on the contractor to the extent the federal government deems appropriate.
Signature of company official:
Company official name:
Date of signature:

3. Access to Records and Reports

The following access to records requirements applies to any contract resulting from this solicitation contract:

- A. The contractor agrees to provide the City of Southside Place, TX, the Texas Division of Emergency Management, the Federal Agency Administrator, the Comptroller General of the United States, and any of their authorized representatives access to any books, documents, papers, and records of the contractor which are directly pertinent to this contract for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts, and transcriptions.
- B. The contractor agrees to permit any of the foregoing parties to reproduce by any means whatsoever or to copy excerpts, and transcriptions.
- C. The contractor agrees to provide the Administrator or their authorized representatives access to construction or other work sites pertaining to the work being completed under the contract.
- D. All project-related records will be retained by the contractor for three years after the termination of the awarded contract.
- E. In compliance with the Disaster Recovery Act of 2018, no language in this provision is intended to prohibit audits or internal reviews by the federal funding agency or the Comptroller General of the United States.

Signature of company official:
Company official name:
Date of signature:

4. Equal Employment Opportunity (20 CFR Part 1630, 41 CFR Part 60 et seq)

During the performance of any contract resulting from this solicitation contract, the contractor agrees as follows:

- (1) The contractor will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, or national origin. The contractor will take affirmative action to ensure that applicants are employed, and that employees are treated during employment without regard to their race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, or national origin. Such action shall include, but not be limited to the following:

 Employment, upgrading, demotion, or transfer; recruitment or recruitment advertising; layoff or termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for training, including apprenticeship. The contractor agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for employment, notices to be provided setting forth the provisions of this nondiscrimination clause.
- (2) The contractor will, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on behalf of the contractor, state that all qualified applicants will receive consideration for employment without regard to race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, or national origin.
- (3) The contractor will not discharge or in any other manner discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because such employee or applicant has inquired about, discussed, or disclosed the compensation of the employee or applicant or another employee or applicant. This provision shall not apply to instances in which an employee who has access to the compensation information of other employees or applicants as a part of such employee's essential job functions discloses the compensation of such other employees or applicants to individuals who do not otherwise have access to such information, unless such disclosure is in response to a formal complaint or charge, in furtherance of an investigation, proceeding, hearing, or action, including an investigation conducted by the employer, or is consistent with the contractor's legal duty to furnish information.
- (4) The contractor will send to each labor union or representative of workers with which he has a collective bargaining agreement or other contract or understanding, a notice to be provided advising the said labor union or workers' representatives of the contractor's commitments under this section and shall post copies of the notice in conspicuous places available to employees and applicants for employment.
- (5) The contractor will comply with all provisions of Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, and of the rules, regulations, and relevant orders of the Secretary of Labor.
- (6) The contractor will furnish all information and reports required by Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, and by rules, regulations, and orders of the Secretary of Labor, or pursuant thereto, and will permit access to his books, records, and accounts by the administering agency and the Secretary of Labor for purposes of investigation to ascertain compliance with such rules, regulations, and orders.
- (7) In the event of the contractor's noncompliance with the nondiscrimination clauses of this contract or with any of the said rules, regulations, or orders, this contract may be canceled, terminated, or suspended in whole or in part and the contractor may be declared ineligible for further Government contracts or federally assisted construction contracts in accordance with procedures authorized in Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, and such other sanctions may be imposed and remedies invoked as provided in Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, or by rule, regulation, or order of the Secretary of Labor, or as otherwise provided by law.

(8) The contractor will include the portion of the sentence immediately preceding paragraph (1) and the provisions of paragraphs (1) through (8) in every subcontract or purchase order unless exempted by rules, regulations, or orders of the Secretary of Labor issued pursuant to section 204 of Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, so that such provisions will be binding upon each subcontractor or vendor. The contractor will take such action with respect to any subcontract or purchase order as the administering agency may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions, including sanctions for noncompliance:

Provided, however, that in the event a contractor becomes involved in, or is threatened with, litigation with a subcontractor or vendor as a result of such direction by the administering agency, the contractor may request the United States to enter into such litigation to protect the interests of the United States.

The offeror further agrees that it will be bound by the above equal opportunity clause with respect to its own employment practices when it participates in federally assisted construction work: *Provided*, That if the applicant so participating is a State or local government, the above equal opportunity clause is not applicable to any agency, instrumentality or subdivision of such government which does not participate in work on or under the contract.

The offeror agrees that it will assist and cooperate actively with the administering agency and the Secretary of Labor in obtaining the compliance of contractors and subcontractors with the equal opportunity clause and the rules, regulations, and relevant orders of the Secretary of Labor, that it will furnish the administering agency and the Secretary of Labor such information as they may require for the supervision of such compliance, and that it will otherwise assist the administering agency in the discharge of the agency's primary responsibility for securing compliance.

The offeror further agrees that it will refrain from entering into any contract or contract modification subject to Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, with a contractor debarred from, or who has not demonstrated eligibility for, Government contracts and federally assisted construction contracts pursuant to the Executive Order and will carry out such sanctions and penalties for violation of the equal opportunity clause as may be imposed upon contractors and subcontractors by the administering agency or the Secretary of Labor pursuant to Part II, Subpart D of the Executive Order. In addition, the applicant agrees that if it fails or refuses to comply with these undertakings, the administering agency may take any or all of the following actions: Cancel, terminate, or suspend in whole or in part this grant (contract, loan, insurance, guarantee); refrain from extending any further assistance to the applicant under the program with respect to which the failure or refund occurred until satisfactory assurance of future compliance has been received from such applicant; and refer the case to the Department of Justice for appropriate legal proceedings.

Signature of company official:	 	
Company official name:	 	
Date of signature:	 	

5. Government-wide Suspension and Debarment

By signing and submitting its bid or proposal, the bidder or proposer agrees to comply with the following:

This contract is a covered transaction for purposes of 2 CFR part 180 and 2 CFR part 3000. As such the contractor is required to verify that none of the contractor, its principals (defined at 2 CFR § 180.995), or its affiliates (defined at 2 CFR § 180.905) are excluded (defined at 2 CFR § 180.940) or disqualified (defined at 2 CFR § 180.935).

The contractor must comply with 2 CFR pt. 180, subpart C and 2 CFR pt. 3000, subpart C and must include a requirement to comply with these regulations in any lower tier covered transaction it enters into.

This certification is a material representation of fact relied upon by (insert name of subrecipient). If it is later determined that the contractor did not comply with 2 CFR part 180, subpart C and 2 CFR part 3000, subpart C, in addition to remedies available to Abbeville General Police Jury, the Louisiana Governor's Office of Homeland Security and Emergency Preparedness, the Federal Government may pursue available remedies, including but not limited to suspension and/or debarment.

The bidder or proposer agrees to comply with the requirements of 2 CFR part 180, subpart C and 2 CFR part 3000, subpart C while this offer is valid and throughout the period of any contract that may arise from this offer. The bidder or proposer further agrees to include a provision requiring such compliance in its lower tier covered transactions.

Signature of company offici	al:	
Company official name:		
Date of signature:		

6. Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (20 CFR §5.5(b))

Overtime requirements – No contractor or subcontractor contracting for any part of the contract work which may require or involve the employment of laborers or mechanics shall require or permit any such laborer or mechanic in any workweek in which he or she is employed on such work to work in excess of forty hours in such workweek unless such laborer or mechanic receives compensation at a rate not less than one and one-half times the basic rate of pay for all hours worked in excess of forty hours in such workweek.

Violation; liability for unpaid wages; liquidated damages – In the event of any violation of the clause set forth in paragraph (1) of this section the contractor and any subcontractor responsible therefor shall be liable for the unpaid wages. In addition, such contractor and subcontractor shall be liable to the United States for liquidated damages. Such liquidated damages shall be computed with respect to each individual laborer or mechanic, including watchmen and guards, employed in violation of the clause set forth in paragraph (1) of this section, in the sum of \$10 for each calendar day on which such individual was required or permitted to work in excess of the standard workweek of forty hours without payment of the overtime wages required by the clause set forth in paragraph (1) of this section.

Withholding for unpaid wages and liquidated damages – The Owner shall, upon its own action or upon written request of an authorized representative of the Department of Labor, withhold or cause to be withheld, from any moneys payable on account of work performed by the contractor or subcontractor under any such contract or any other Federal contract with the same prime contractor, or any other federally-assisted contract subject to the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act, which is held by the same prime contractor, such sums as may be determined to be necessary to satisfy any liabilities of such contractor or subcontractor for unpaid wages and liquidated damages as provided in the clause set forth in paragraph (2) of this section.

Subcontracts – Contractor or subcontractor shall insert in any subcontracts the clauses set forth in paragraphs (1) through (4) of this section and also a clause requiring the subcontractors to include these clauses in any lower tier subcontracts. The prime contractor shall be responsible for compliance by any subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor with the clauses set forth in paragraphs (1) through (4) of this section.

Signature of company official:	
Company official name:	
Date of signature:	

7. Compliance with David-Bacon Act (40 U.S.C. 3141 et seq) as supplemented by Department of Labor regulations (29 CFR part 5) and with the Copeland 'Anti-Kickback' Act (18 U.S.C, 874; 40 U.S.C. 3145) as supplemented in Department of Labor regulations (29 CFR part 3) (as applicable)

Davis-Bacon Act, as amended (40 U.S.C. 3141-3148). When required by federal program legislation, all prime construction contracts in excess of \$2,000 awarded by non-federal entities must include a provision for compliance with the Davis-Bacon Act (40 U.S.C. 3141-3144, and 3146-3148) as supplemented by Department of Labor regulations (29 CFR Part 5, "Labor Standards Provisions).

Applicable to Contracts Covering Federally Financed and Assisted Construction"). In accordance with the statute, contractors must be required to pay wages to laborers and mechanics at a rate not less than the prevailing wages specified in a wage determination made by the Secretary of Labor.

In addition, contractors must be required to pay wages not less than once a week. The non-federal entity must place a copy of the current prevailing wage determination issued by the Department of Labor in each solicitation. The decision to award a contract or subcontract must be conditioned upon the acceptance of the wage determination. The non-federal entity must report all suspected or reported violations to the Federal awarding agency.

The contracts must also include a provision for compliance with the Copeland "Anti-Kickback" Act (40 U.S.C. 3145), as supplemented by Department of Labor regulations (29 CFR Part 3, "Contractors and Subcontractors on Public Building or Public Work Financed in Whole or in Part by Loans or Grants from the United States"). The Act provides that each contractor or subrecipient must be prohibited from inducing, by any means, any person employed in the construction, completion, or repair of public work, to give up any part of the compensation to which he or she is otherwise entitled. The non-federal entity must report all suspected or reported violations to the federal awarding agency.

Signature of company official:	 	
Company official name:		
Date of signature:	 	

8. Section 3 Clause (as applicable)

All Section 3 covered contracts shall include the following clause (referred to as the Section 3 clause):

- A. The work to be performed under this contract is subject to the requirements of Section 3 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968, as amended, 12 U.S.C. 1701u (Section 3). The purpose of Section 3 is to ensure that employment and other economic opportunities generated by HUD assistance or HUD-assisted projects covered by Section 3, shall, to the greatest extent feasible, be directed to low- and very low-income persons, particularly persons who are recipients of HUD assistance for housing.
- B. The parties to this contract agree to comply with HUD's regulations in 24 CFR part 135, which implements Section 3. As evidenced by their execution of this contract, the parties to this contract certify that they are under no contractual or other impediment that would prevent them from complying with part 135 regulations.
- C. The contractor will certify that any vacant employment positions, including training positions, that are filled (1) after the contractor is selected but before the contract is executed, and (2) with persons other than those to whom the regulations of 24 CFR part 135 require employment opportunities to be directed, were not filled to circumvent the contractor's obligations under 24 CFR part 135.
- D. Noncompliance with HUD's regulations in 24 CFR part 135 may result in sanctions, termination of this contract for default, and debarment or suspension from future HUD assisted contracts.
- E. With respect to work performed in connection with Section 3 covered Indian housing assistance, section 7(b) of the Indian Self-Determination and Education Assistance Act (25 U.S.C. 450e) also applies to the work to be performed under this contract. Section 7(b) requires that to the greatest extent feasible (i) preference and opportunities for training and employment shall be given to Indians, and (ii) preference in the award of contracts and subcontracts shall be given to Indian organizations and Indian-owned Economic Enterprises.

Parties to this contract that are subject to the provisions of Section 3 and section 7(b) agree to comply with Section 3 to the maximum extent feasible, but not in derogation of compliance with section 7(b).

Signature of company official:	
Company official name:	
Date of signature:	

9. Lobbying (Byrd Anti-Lobbying Amendment, 31 U.S.C § 1352, as amended)

Contractors who apply or bid for an award of \$100,000 or more shall file the required certification. Each tier certifies to the tier above that it will not and has not used Federal appropriated funds to pay any person or organization for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a member of Congress, officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a member of Congress in connection with obtaining any federal contract, grant, or any other award covered by 31 U.S.C. § 1352. Each tier shall also disclose any lobbying with non-federal funds that takes place in connection with obtaining any federal award. Such disclosures are forwarded from tier to tier up to the recipient.

Appendix A, 44 CFR Part 18 – Certification Regarding Lobbying (to be submitted with each bid or offer exceeding \$100,000)

The undersigned certifies, to the best of their knowledge, that:

- 1. No federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of an agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any federal contract, the making of any federal grant, the making of any federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement.
- 2. If any funds other than federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, "Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying," in accordance with its instructions.
- The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
 documents for all subawards at all tiers (including subcontracts, subgrants and contracts under
 grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all subrecipients shall certify and disclose
 accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction imposed by 31, U.S.C. § (as amended by the Lobbying Disclosure Act of 1995). Any person who fails to the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than \$10,000 and not more than \$100,000 for each such failure.

The Contractor certifies or affirms the truthfulness and accuracy of each statement of its certification and disclosure, if any. In addition, Contractor understands and agrees that the provisions of 31 U.S.C. § 3801 et seq apply to this certification and disclosure, if any.

Signature of company official:	
Company official name:	
Date of signature:	

10. Clean Air (42 U.S.C. § 7401 et seq)

Contractor agrees to comply with all applicable standards, orders or regulations issued pursuant to the Clean Air Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. §§ 7401 et seq. The Contractor agrees to report each violation to the Owner and understands and agrees that the Owner will, in turn, report each violation as required to assure notification to the State of Louisiana, Federal Emergency Management Agency, and the appropriate Environmental Protection Agency Regional Office.

Contractor also agrees to include these requirements in each subcontract exceeding \$150,000 financed in whole or in part with federal assistance provided by FEMA.

Signature of company official:
Company official name:
Date of signature:
11. Clean Water (33 U.S.C. § 1251 et seq) Contractor agrees to comply with all applicable standards, orders or regulations issued pursuant to the Federal Water Pollution Control Act, as amended, 33 U.S.C. 1251 et seq. Contractor agrees to report each violation to the Owner and understands and agrees that the Owner will, in turn, report each violation as required to assure notification to the State of Louisiana, Federal Emergency Management Agency, and the appropriate Environmental Protection Agency Regional Office. Contractor also agrees to include these requirements in each subcontract exceeding \$150,000 financed in whole or in part with federal assistance provided by FEMA.
Signature of company official:
Company official name:
Date of signature:

12. Procurement of Recovered Materials (42 U.S.C. § 6962)

In the performance of this contract, the Contractor shall make use of products containing recovered materials that are EPA-designated items unless the product(s) cannot be acquired:

- A. In the performance of this contract, the Contractor shall make use of products containing recovered materials that are EPA-designated items unless the product(s) cannot be acquired:
 - 1. Competitively within a timeframe providing for compliance with the contract performance schedule;
 - 2. Meeting contract performance requirements; or
 - 3. At a reasonable price.
- B. Information about this requirement, and a list of EPA-designated items, is available at the EPA's Comprehensive Procurement Guidelines website: https://www.epa.gov/smm/comprehensive-procurement-guideline-cpg-program
- C. Contract also agrees to comply with all other applicable requirements of Section 6002 of the Solid Waste Disposal Act.

Signature of company official:	
Company official name:	
Date of signature:	
13. Department of Homeland Security Seal, Logo, and Flags (as applicable) The Contractor shall not use the DHS seal(s), logo, crests, or reproductions of flags or likenesses of D agency officials without specific DHS or FEMA pre-approval.	OHS
Signature of company official:	
Company official name:	
Date of signature:	

14. Compliance with Federal Laws, Regulations, and Executive Orders

The Contractor acknowledges that federal financial assistance shall be used to fund contracts only. The contractor will comply with all applicable federal laws, regulations, Executive Orders, federal policies, procedures, and directives.

Signature of company official:
Company official name:
Date of signature:

15. Prohibition on Contracting for Covered Telecommunications Equipment or Services

- (a) Definitions. As used in this clause, the terms backhaul; covered foreign country; covered telecommunications equipment or services; interconnection arrangements; roaming; substantial or essential component; and telecommunications equipment or services have the meaning as defined in FEMA Policy 405-143-1, Prohibitions on Expending FEMA Award Funds for Covered Telecommunications Equipment or Services (Interim), as used in this clause—
- (b) Prohibitions.
- (1) Section 889(b) of the John S. McCain National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2019, Pub. L. No. 115-232, and 2 C.F.R. § 200.216 prohibit the head of an executive agency on or after Aug.13, 2020, from obligating or expending grant, cooperative agreement, loan, or loan guarantee funds on certain telecommunications products or from certain entities for national security reasons.
- (2) Unless an exception in paragraph (c) of this clause applies, the contractor and its subcontractors may not use grant, cooperative agreement, loan, or loan guarantee funds from the Federal Emergency Management Agency to:
- (i) Procure or obtain any equipment, system, or service that uses covered telecommunications equipment or services as a substantial or essential component of any system, or as critical technology of any system;
- (ii) Enter into, extend, or renew a contract to procure or obtain any equipment, system, or service that uses covered telecommunications equipment or services as a substantial or essential component of any system, or as critical technology of any system;
- (iii) Enter into, extend, or renew contracts with entities that use covered telecommunications equipment or services as a substantial or essential component of any system, or as critical technology as part of any
- (iv) Provide, as part of its performance of this contract, subcontract, or other contractual instrument, any equipment, system, or service that uses covered telecommunications equipment or services as a substantial or essential component of any system, or as critical technology as part of any system.
- (c) Exceptions.
- (1) This clause does not prohibit contractors from providing—
- (i) A service that connects to the facilities of a third-party, such as backhaul, roaming, or interconnection arrangements; or
- (ii) Telecommunications equipment that cannot route or redirect user data traffic or permit visibility into any user data or packets that such equipment transmits or otherwise handles.
- (2) By necessary implication and regulation, the prohibitions also do not apply to:
- (i) Covered telecommunications equipment or services that:
- i. Are not used as a substantial or essential component of any system; and
- ii. Are *not used* as critical technology of any system.
- (ii) Other telecommunications equipment or services that are not considered covered telecommunications equipment or services.
- (d) Reporting requirement.

- (1) In the event the contractor identifies covered telecommunications equipment or services used as a substantial or essential component of any system, or as critical technology as part of any system, during contract performance, or the contractor is notified of such by a subcontractor at any tier or by any other source, the contractor shall report the information in paragraph (d)(2) of this clause to the recipient or subrecipient, unless elsewhere in this contract are established procedures for reporting the information. (2) The Contractor shall report the following information pursuant to paragraph (d)(1) of this clause: (i) Within one business day from the date of such identification or notification: The contract number; the order number(s), if applicable; supplier name; supplier unique entity identifier (if known); supplier Commercial and Government Entity (CAGE) code (if known); brand; model number (original equipment manufacturer number, manufacturer part number, or wholesaler number); item description; and any readily available information about mitigation actions undertaken or recommended. (ii) Within 10 business days of submitting the information in paragraph (d)(2)(i) of this clause: Any further available information about mitigation actions undertaken or recommended. In addition, the contractor shall describe the efforts it undertook to prevent use or submission of covered telecommunications equipment or services, and any additional efforts that will be incorporated to prevent
- (e) *Subcontracts*. The Contractor shall insert the substance of this clause, including this paragraph (e), in all subcontracts and other contractual instruments.

Signature of company official: _	
Company official name:	
Date of signature:	

future use or submission of covered telecommunications equipment or services.

26

16. Domestic Preference for Procurement

As appropriate, and to the extent consistent with law, the contractor should, to the greatest extent practicable, provide a preference for the purchase, acquisition, or use of goods, products, or materials produced in the United States. This includes, but is not limited to iron, aluminum, steel, cement, and other manufactured products.

For purposes of this clause:

Date of signature: _____

Produced in the United States means, for iron and steel products, that all manufacturing processes, from the initial melting stage through the application of coatings, occurred in the United States.

Manufactured products mean items and construction materials composed in whole or in part of nonferrous metals such as aluminum; plastics and polymer-based products such as polyvinyl chloride pipe; aggregates such as concrete; glass, including optical fiber; and lumber.

Signature of company official:
Company official name:
Date of signature:
17. Copyright and Data Rights The Contractor grants to the offeror, a paid-up, royalty-free, nonexclusive, irrevocable, worldwide license in data first produced in the performance of this contract to reproduce, publish, or otherwise use, including prepare derivative works, distribute copies to the public, and perform publicly and display publicly such data. For data required by the contract but not first produced in the performance of this contract, the Contractor will identify such data and grant to the offeror or acquires on its behalf a license of the same scope as for data first produced in the performance of this contract. Data, as used herein, shall include any work subject to copyright under 17 U.S.C. § 102, for example, any written reports or literary works, software and/or source code, music, choreography, pictures or images, graphics, sculptures, videos, motion pictures or other audiovisual works, sound and/or video recordings, and architectural works. Upon or before the completion of this contract, the Contractor will deliver to the offeror data first produced in the performance of this contract and data required by the contract but not first produced in the performance of this contract in formats acceptable by the offeror.
Signature of company official:
Company official name:

18. Contracting with Small and Minority Businesses, Women's Business Enterprises, and Labor Surplus Area Firms

- (a) When possible, any party to this contract should ensure that minority businesses, women's business enterprises, and labor surplus area firms are considered when possible. These steps are also encouraged for the hiring of any subcontractors under this contract.
- (b) Such consideration means:
 - (1) These business types are included on solicitation lists;
 - (2) These business types are solicited whenever they are deemed eligible as potential sources;
 - (3) Dividing procurement transactions into separate procurements to permit maximum participation by these business types;
 - (4) Establishing delivery schedules, where the requirements permit, that encourage participation by these business types;
 - (5) Using the services and assistance, as appropriate, of such organizations as the Small Business Administration and the Minority Business Development Agency of the Department of Commerce; and
 - (6) Requiring a contractor under a federal award to apply this section to subcontractors.

Signature of company official:
Company official name:
Date of signature:
19. Build America, Buy American Act Compliance (as applicable) When required by federal program legislation, contractors must comply with the Build America, Buy America Act (BABAA), which was enacted as part of the Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act §§ 70901-70927, Pub. L. No 117-58 (2021); and Executive Order 14005, Ensuring the Future is Made in All
of America by All of America's Workers. (1) BABAA applies to articles, materials, and supplies that are consumed in, incorporated into, or affixed to an infrastructure project.
(2) Iron and steel manufactured products and construction materials used in the project are produced in the United States.
Signature of company official:
Company official name:
Date of signature:

NOTICE OF AWARD

DATE:				
то:				
The Owner represented project in response to its				entioned
In appearing that it is to \$				
You are required by the undersigned Owner with If you fail to execute sai delivery of this Notice, Owner's acceptance of Proposal to another, or to fit.	in ten (10) days from d contract and to furr said Owner will be e you Proposal as aba	the date of the delivery nish said bond within te ntitled to consider all y andoned and to award	of this notice to you n (10) days from the our rights arising ou the work covered	a. e date of at of the by your
Dated this	day of	20	·	
			Eastman, President Davis Parish Police .	—— Jury
	<u>ACCEPTA</u>	NCE OF NOTICE		
Receipt of the above NOT	ICE OF AWARD is her	rby acknowledged by:		
	, on this the	day of	,20	
		T:41		

NOTICE TO PROCEED

DATE:			
ТО:			
You are herby notified to commence work in You will have			
to commence construction activity andto complete all work. The date of completion	calendar day on of all work is J. Stev	rs from the date of comments from the date o	nmencement day of nt
<u>ACCEPTAN</u>	Jeners ICE OF NOTICE	on Davis Parish Poli	ce Jury
Receipt of the above NOTICE TO PROCEED is he	erby acknowledged b	y:	
, on this the	day of	,20	_•
	Signature:		
	Title		